
SABGSA Agenda – January 16, 2024 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

SAN ANTONIO BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

(“Agency” or “SABGSA”) Board of Directors (“Board”) will hold its regular Board Meeting at 6:00 P.M. on 
Tuesday, January 16, 2024 at the Los Alamos Community Services District located at 82 St. Joseph Street, 

Los Alamos, CA 93440.  Virtual options are available for public participation.1 
 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83127401605?pwd=WHpIQmZTR2hoY2NWa3J2MDczbnhtUT09 

Meeting ID: 831 2740 1605  Passcode: 203727 
Dial: (669) 900 6833  

 

SAN ANTONIO BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY (SABGSA)  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

3.   PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA 
The Board will receive public comments on items not appearing on the agenda and within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Agency.  The Board will not enter into a detailed discussion, answer questions, or take any action 
on any items presented during public comments.  At the Board’s discretion, any issue raised during Public Comment 
may be referred to the Executive Director or other staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent 
agenda for discussion.  Persons wishing to speak on specific agenda items should do so at the time specified for 
those items.  The presiding Chair shall limit public comments to no more than three minutes. 
 

4.  CONSENT ITEMS 
a.  Approve Minutes from November 28, 2023, Regular Meeting  
b.  Agency Finances, Budget, and Training 

 i.   The Board will receive a report from the accountant regarding finances and expenses for  
       November and December 2023. 
 ii.  The Board will receive a report regarding training. 

 
5. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

a. Executive Director Update 
• Update on activities performed by the Executive Director  

b. San Antonio Basin Water District Update 
• Update on San Antonio Basin Water District activities  

c. Advisory Committee Updates 
• Update on Advisory Committee 

d. Board Member Updates 
• Board members will provide any updates relevant to the SABGSA 

 
1 SABGSA will make reasonable efforts to make the meeting accessible virtually; however, if one of the virtual options 
are unavailable due to technological issues, you are invited to take advantage of the other options, including in-person 
attendance. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83127401605?pwd=WHpIQmZTR2hoY2NWa3J2MDczbnhtUT09


SABGSA Agenda – January 16, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
6. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 

 
a. Election of Officers for the 2024 Term 

Pursuant to Article 8 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, the Board of Directors shall elect 
Officers – Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer – annually for one (1) year terms by a majority 
vote.   Officers are also authorized signers on the SABGSA checking account.  The Board will 
consider updating the bank signature card with the newly elected Officers, if necessary.  The Board 
may take action on this item.   
 

b. Well Verification Request for a New Well – Hardship Exemption  
The SABGSA received a well verification request for a new well under the hardship exemption in 
SABGSA’s Well Verification Policy, adopted by Resolution 22-001.  Per the Well Verification Policy, 
the Board of Directors, on a case-by-case basis, has the authority, upon a showing of good cause by 
an applicant or other individual with standing, to waive portions of the Well Verification Policy.  The 
Board will consider the well verification request submitted by Mr. Righetti for a new well on Santa 
Barbara County Assessor Parcel Number 101-020-080.  The Board may take action and/or provide 
specific direction to SABGSA staff, legal counsel, and/or GSI Water Solutions, Inc. related to this 
item. 
 

c. Q4 2023 Quarterly Water Level Monitoring Report for the San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater 
Basin 
The SABGSA has received the Q4 2023 Quarterly Water Level Monitoring Report. The Board of 
Directors will review and discuss the recommendations listed in the report and may take action 
and/or provide specific direction to SABGSA staff and/or GSI Water Solutions, Inc. related to this 
item.  

 
7.   ADJOURN 
 
NEXT MEETING:  February 20, 2024, at 6pm  

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/sanantoniobasingsa.org/wp-content/uploads/SACVB_4Q2023_WL_Mon_TM_20231219.pdf


SABGSA Meeting Minutes – November 28, 2023 
Page 1 of 3 

SAN ANTONIO BASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY (SABGSA)  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
Tuesday, November 28, 2023 

1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL – The meeting was called to order by President Sharer at 6:00pm at
the Los Alamos Community Services District, located at 82 St. Joseph Street, Los Alamos, CA.  Members
of the public had the option to participate virtually or in-person.

Board of Directors Present:  Dan Chabot, Tom Durant, Kevin Merrill, Patrice Mosby, Kenny Pata,
Randy Sharer, Alternate Director Brad Vidro, Chris Wrather
Alternates present, but not acting on behalf of a Director:  Jim Stollberg
Directors Absent:  Juan Gomez

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA
No public comment.

4. CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approve Minutes from October 17, 2023, SABGSA Board Meeting
Motion by Director Wrather, second by Director Chabot to approve the minutes of the October 17,
2023 Board meeting, as presented.
Ayes: Dan Chabot, Tom Durant, Kevin Merrill, Patrice Mosby, Kenny Pata, Randy Sharer, Chris Wrather
Nos: None; Absent: Juan Gomez; Abstain: Alternate Director Brad Vidro.

b. Agency Finances, Budgeting, and Training
Motion by Director Durant, second by Director Pata to approve the financial report dated October
31, 2023, as presented.
Ayes: Dan Chabot, Tom Durant, Kevin Merrill, Patrice Mosby, Kenny Pata, Randy Sharer, Alternate
Director Brad Vidro, Chris Wrather
Nos: None; Absent: Juan Gomez; Abstain: None.

5. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
a. Executive Director Updates:

• SABGSA received a well verification request for a new well under the Hardship Exemption
outlined in SABGSA’s Well Verification Policy (adopted via Resolution 22-001).  SABGSA
communicated to the landowner the process, documents, and deposit fee required to
review and process the request.  As of November 28, 2023, SABGSA has not received all of
the required documentation so there is no action to be taken at this time.  This request will
be placed on a future agenda for Board review and action.

b. San Antonio Basin Water District Update
Executive Director Donna Glass reported that the San Antonio Basin Water District (SABWD) Board
of Directors met on November 28, 2023.



 
SABGSA Meeting Minutes – November 28, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

• Invoices for the 2023-24 Assessments were sent out on August 8, 2023.  To date, 89% of 
payments have been collected totaling $479,162. 

• The SABWD Board approved investing an additional $50,000 with CA CLASS.   
• The SABWD Boad approved a fund transfer in the amount of $21,500 to the SABGSA to 

cover invoices received in November and the estimated total for invoices that will be 
submitted in December.  The estimate totals for December were included in the request 
since the next SABWD and SABGSA meetings will not occur until January 16, 2024. 
 

c. Advisory Committee Updates 
• The Advisory Committee did not meet in November 2023.     

 
d. Board Member Updates 

• None. 
 

6. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 
a. Discuss and Consider Awarding a Contract for the GSP Annual Report for Water Year 2023 

The SABGSA issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the GSP Annual Report for Water Year 2023.  
The SABGSA received one RFP response from GSI Water Solutions, Inc.  The RFP response was 
reviewed by the Board appointed Ad Hoc Committee who recommended approval of the proposal, 
as presented.  SABGSA Executive Director reviewed the scope of work and fees outlined in the 
proposal with the Board.  Following a discussion, the Board took the following action. 
Motion by Director Merrill, second by Director Durant to select GSI Water Solutions for the GSP 
Annual Report for WY 2023 for the scope of services listed in RFP response for $55,200 and 
authorize SABGSA Executive Director to execute the contract pending a review by legal counsel. 
Ayes: Dan Chabot, Tom Durant, Kevin Merrill, Patrice Mosby, Kenny Pata, Randy Sharer, Alternate 
Director Brad Vidro, Chris Wrather 
Nos: None; Absent: Juan Gomez; Abstain: None. 
 

b. Discuss and Consider Awarding a Contract for Quarterly Groundwater Level Monitoring and 
Reporting for Calendar Year 2024 
The SABGSA issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Quarterly Groundwater Level Monitoring and 
Reporting for calendar year 2024.   The SABGSA received two RFP responses – one from Cleath 
Harris and one from GSI Water Solutions, Inc.  Both RFP responses were reviewed by the Board 
appointed Ad Hoc Committee who recommended approval of the proposal from GSI Water 
Solutions, Inc., as presented.  SABGSA Executive Director reviewed the scope of work and fees 
outlined in both proposals with the Board.  Following a discussion, the Board took the following 
action. 
Motion by Director Merrill, second by Director Mosby to select GSI Water Solutions for the 
Quarterly Groundwater Level Monitoring and Reporting for Calendar Year 2024 for the scope of 
services listed in RFP response for $58,100 and authorize SABGSA Executive Director to execute 
the contract pending a review by legal counsel. 
Ayes: Dan Chabot, Tom Durant, Kevin Merrill, Patrice Mosby, Kenny Pata, Randy Sharer, Alternate 
Director Brad Vidro, Chris Wrather 
Nos: None; Absent: Juan Gomez; Abstain: None. 
 

c. SABGSA Metering Program Conceptual Framework 
The Ad Hoc Committee presented the fourth draft of the conceptual framework for the metering 
program focused on the program’s components.  The program’s objective, purpose, and 
overarching goal remain unchanged.  The Board did not take action on this item.  The Ad Hoc 

https://sanantoniobasingsa.org/metering-program/
https://sanantoniobasingsa.org/metering-program/


 
SABGSA Meeting Minutes – November 28, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

Committee will continue to refine and add to the framework.  Highlights of the presentation 
included the following recommendations: 

• Calibration:  The frequency of routine calibration will be done per the schedule outlined in 
the manufacturer’s specifications.  If the manufacturer does not specify a calibration 
schedule, flow meters will be calibrated every five years.  SABGSA reserves the right to 
request verification/proof of accuracy if an issue arises. 

• Reporting Timeline:  Landowners record monthly flow meter readings within the first five 
days of the month rather than the first day of each month.  Landowners will self-report the 
monthly readings to SABGSA twice per year.  SABGSA has aligned the reporting schedule 
with the water year.  SABGSA will provide a 60-day window for landowners to complete 
and submit the Flow Meter Reporting Form.   

• Reporting Mechanism:  The Ad Hoc Committee will continue to discuss the specific 
reporting mechanisms and recommended three options for consideration:  hardcopy via US 
Mail, electronic (fillable pdf) via email, online form and/or cell phone app.  The Ad Hoc 
Committee will explore the logistics and cost of the online form and/or cell phone app and 
report back to the Board. 

• Compliance Forms:  Drafts of the Flow Meter Installation & Calibration Compliance Form 
and the Groundwater Extraction / Flow Meter Reporting Form were presented.  The Board 
did not propose any edits or revisions.   
 

• FAQ Document:  The Ad Hoc Committee will develop a draft Frequently Asked Questions 
(FAQ) document to be used as a communication tool with landowners.  A draft will be 
presented to the Board in February or March.   

 
7.   NEXT MEETING:  January 16, 2024 at 6pm at the Los Alamos Community Services District. 

 
8.   ADJOURN – 7:15pm 

 

Please contact Stephanie Bertoux at admin@sanantoniobasingsa.org with any questions. 

mailto:%20admin@sanantoniobasingsa.org


 San Antonio Basin GSA

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through November 2023

42% of the year has elapsed Jul - Nov 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4-Interest Income 12.21

Total Income 12.21

Expense

Administration and Operation

01Admininstrative Exp/Office Ex 20,845.34 76,000.00 -55,154.66 27.43%

02-Accountant 2,800.00 7,500.00 -4,700.00 37.33%

04-Monitoring 18,866.61 90,000.00 -71,133.39 20.96%

05-Legal Counsel 3,910.50 75,000.00 -71,089.50 5.21%

06-Insurance 1,733.00 3,000.00 -1,267.00 57.77%

07-Audit Fees 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%

09-GSP Related Costs-Annual Rep 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

10-GSP Implementation / PMAs 5,523.75 142,500.00 -136,976.25 3.88%

11- Exec Order WellVerification -197.50

Total Administration and Operation 53,481.70 498,000.00 -444,518.30 10.74%

Total Expense 53,481.70 498,000.00 -444,518.30 10.74%

Net Ordinary Income -53,469.49 -498,000.00 444,530.51 10.74%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

11 Operating Transfers 40,602.86 498,000.00 -457,397.14 8.15%

12 Carryover Funds 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Income 40,602.86 548,000.00 -507,397.14 7.41%

Other Expense

Contingency (10%) 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 40,602.86 498,000.00 -457,397.14 8.15%

Net Income -12,866.63 0.00 -12,866.63 100.0%

 Page 1 of 1



 San Antonio Basin GSA

 Balance Sheet
 As of November 30, 2023

Nov 30, 23

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 42,344.36

Total Checking/Savings 42,344.36

Total Current Assets 42,344.36

TOTAL ASSETS 42,344.36

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Equity

Retained Earnings 55,210.99

Net Income -12,866.63

Total Equity 42,344.36

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 42,344.36



 San Antonio Basin GSA

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 November 2023

Type Date Num Account Split Amount

BERTOUX & COMPANY

Check 11/17/2023 3066 01Admininstrative Exp/Office Ex Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 5,000.00

Total BERTOUX & COMPANY 5,000.00

Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck

Check 11/17/2023 3067 05-Legal Counsel Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 945.00

Total Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck 945.00

Carrie Troup, C.P.A.

Check 11/17/2023 3071 02-Accountant Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 700.00

Total Carrie Troup, C.P.A. 700.00

GSI WATER SOLUTIONS, INC.

Check 11/17/2023 3068 10-GSP Implementation / PMAs Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 1,233.75

Check 11/17/2023 3069 04-Monitoring Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 321.25

Total GSI WATER SOLUTIONS, INC. 1,555.00

Los Alamos CSD

TOTAL Check 11/17/2023 3070 01Admininstrative Exp/Office Ex Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 200.00

Total Los Alamos CSD 200.00

8,400.00



 San Antonio Basin GSA

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through December 2023

50% of the year has elapsed Jul - Dec 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4-Interest Income 12.21

Total Income 12.21

Expense

Administration and Operation

01Admininstrative Exp/Office Ex 26,045.34 76,000.00 -49,954.66 34.27%

02-Accountant 3,500.00 7,500.00 -4,000.00 46.67%

04-Monitoring 19,521.61 90,000.00 -70,478.39 21.69%

05-Legal Counsel 5,878.50 75,000.00 -69,121.50 7.84%

06-Insurance 1,733.00 3,000.00 -1,267.00 57.77%

07-Audit Fees 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%

09-GSP Related Costs-Annual Rep 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

10-GSP Implementation / PMAs 8,663.75 142,500.00 -133,836.25 6.08%

11- Exec Order WellVerification -197.50

Total Administration and Operation 65,144.70 498,000.00 -432,855.30 13.08%

Total Expense 65,144.70 498,000.00 -432,855.30 13.08%

Net Ordinary Income -65,132.49 -498,000.00 432,867.51 13.08%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

11 Operating Transfers 40,602.86 498,000.00 -457,397.14 8.15%

12 Carryover Funds 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Income 40,602.86 548,000.00 -507,397.14 7.41%

Other Expense

Contingency (10%) 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 40,602.86 498,000.00 -457,397.14 8.15%

Net Income -24,529.63 0.00 -24,529.63 100.0%

 Page 1 of 1



 San Antonio Basin GSA

 Balance Sheet
 As of December 31, 2023

Dec 31, 23

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 30,681.36

Total Checking/Savings 30,681.36

Total Current Assets 30,681.36

TOTAL ASSETS 30,681.36

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Equity

Retained Earnings 55,210.99

Net Income -24,529.63

Total Equity 30,681.36

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 30,681.36



 San Antonio Basin GSA

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 December 2023

Type Date Num Account Split Amount

BERTOUX & COMPANY

Check 12/19/2023 3072 01Admininstrative Exp/Office Ex Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 5,000.00

Total BERTOUX & COMPANY 5,000.00

Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck

Check 12/19/2023 3073 05-Legal Counsel Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 1,968.00

Total Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck 1,968.00

Carrie Troup, C.P.A.

Check 12/19/2023 3078 02-Accountant Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 700.00

Total Carrie Troup, C.P.A. 700.00

GSI WATER SOLUTIONS, INC.

Check 12/20/2023 3079 10-GSP Implementation / PMAs Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 1,912.50

Check 12/20/2023 3080 10-GSP Implementation / PMAs Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 1,227.50

Check 12/20/2023 3081 04-Monitoring Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 655.00

Total GSI WATER SOLUTIONS, INC. 3,795.00

Los Alamos CSD

Check 12/19/2023 3077 01Admininstrative Exp/Office Ex Community Bank of SM -ACCT 9006 200.00

Total Los Alamos CSD 200.00

TOTAL 11,663.00



  

Jessica L. Diaz 
Attorney at Law 
805.882.1416 direct 
jdiaz@bhfs.com  

www.bhfs.com 

Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
805.963.7000 main 
1021 Anacapa Street, 2nd Floor 
Santa Barbara, California  93101 

 

Memorandum 
 

DATE: January 11, 2024 

TO: San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (“SABGSA”)  
Board of Directors 

COPY TO: Stephanie Bertoux, SABGSA Executive Director 

FROM: Jessica Diaz, SABGSA Counsel 

RE: Well Verification Request for a New Well on Santa Barbara County  
APN No. 101-020-080  

 

I. SUMMARY OF AGENDA ITEM 

At its meeting on January 16, 2024, the SABGSA Board of Directors (“Board”) will consider a well 
verification request (“Request”) submitted on behalf of Mr. Paul Righetti (the “Applicant”) for a new 
groundwater well to be located on Santa Barbara County Assessor Parcel Number 101-020-080, 
located at 7476 Graciosa Road, Santa Maria, California 93455. The Applicant seeks a waiver of the 
SABGSA’s Well Verification Policy (Resolution No. 22-001) pursuant to Section 5, Hardship Exemption. 

II. POTENTIAL ACTIONS THE BOARD MAY TAKE 

(1) The Board may deny the Request with prejudice, and direct legal counsel to return to the 
Board with a resolution including appropriate findings, to be considered on the consent calendar at 
the Board’s February 20, 2024 meeting. If the Board denies the Request with prejudice, Righetti will 
not have an opportunity to re-submit the Request with additional supporting documentation. 

(2) The Board may deny the Request without prejudice, and direct legal counsel to return to the 
Board with a resolution including appropriate findings, to be considered on the consent calendar at 
the Board’s February 20, 2024 meeting. If the Board denies the Request without prejudice, Righetti 
will have an opportunity to re-submit the Request with additional supporting documentation. 

(3) The Board may approve a waiver of the Well Verification Policy pursuant to the Hardship 
Exemption, direct GSI Water Solutions, Inc. to prepare a technical analysis supporting the necessary 

mailto:jdiaz@bhfs.com


  

2 

findings, and direct legal counsel to return to the Board with a resolution including appropriate 
findings, to be considered on the consent calendar at the Board’s February 20, 2024 meeting. 

III. RECOMMENDATION 

For the reasons below, legal counsel recommends that the Board deny the Request with prejudice on 
the grounds that there has not been a sufficient showing of “good cause,” as required by Section 5 of 
the Well Verification Policy.  

IV. BACKGROUND ON THE WELL VERIFICATION POLICY 

On July 19, 2022, SABGSA adopted a Well Verification Policy to implement Governor Newsom’s 
Executive Order N-7-22 and the County of Santa Barbara’s Ordinance No. 5158 (“County Urgency 
Ordinance”).  

Executive Order N-7-22 provides that a county shall not approve a well permit for a new groundwater 
well in a basin subject to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and classified as medium- or 
high-priority without first obtaining from the groundwater sustainability agency managing the basin a 
“written verification” that (1) “groundwater extraction by the proposed well would not be 
inconsistent with any sustainable groundwater management program established in any applicable 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan” and that (2) groundwater extraction from the proposed well “would 
not decrease the likelihood of achieving a sustainability goal” for the basin. The County Urgency 
Ordinance modified the County’s well permitting framework in response to Executive Order N-7-22 by 
requiring an applicant to obtain a written well verification from SABGSA prior to County 
Environmental Health Services processing the applicant’s well permit application.1  

SABGSA’s Well Verification Policy responded to Executive Order N-7-22 and the County Urgency 
Ordinance by establishing a framework for the issuance of well verifications consistent with the 
groundwater sustainability plan (“GSP”) for the San Antonio Creek Valley Basin (the “Basin”) and latest 
information about groundwater conditions within the Basin. Under the Well Verification Policy, 
SABGSA cannot issue a Well Verification for a new well until expiration of Executive Order N-7-22 and 
the County Urgency Ordinance2. Section 5 of the Well Verification Policy provides for the following 
“Hardship Exemption”: 

Hardship Exemption. The Agency Board of Directors, on a case-by-case basis, shall have the 
authority, upon a showing of good cause by an applicant or other individual with standing, to 
waive portions of this Well Verification Policy. “Good cause” shall mean a factual and 
evidentiary showing by the applicant that this Well Verification Policy, if not waived, will (1) 
deprive the applicant of substantially all reasonable economic use of its property under the 
Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution or Article I, Section 19 of the California Constitution; 
or (2) result in a violation of an applicable California or federal law. All such request for a 

 

1 County Urgency Ordinance, Sec. 2.  
2  SABGSA’s Well Verification Policy, Sec. 4.a.  



  

3 

waiver shall be filed with the Agency Executive Director, including all supporting materials 
showing the “good cause.” 

V. SUMMARY OF THE RIGHETTI WELL VERIFICATION REQUEST 

The Request seeks a written verification from the SABGSA pursuant to the Hardship Exemption for a 
new groundwater well in the Basin, “Righetti Well #3.” According to the Request, Righetti Well #3 
would be no larger than 8” in diameter, with a pumping capacity of 30-50 gallons per minute 
(“gpm”).3 Righetti Well #3 would be used to supply water to an existing, multi-generational cattle 
operation with an average herd size of 400 cattle, with an estimated maximum use of approximately 
22.4 acre feet per year.4 The Request also notes that there is a need for a back-up water supply for 
“multiple residential units” in the event that the existing well serving the residential units were to 
fail.5 

According to the Request, no new agricultural use or increased water use for the existing cattle 
operation is proposed.6  However, water for the existing cattle operation is currently provided from a 
groundwater well operated by Pacific Coast Energy (Oil) Company outside the Basin, delivered to the 
Righetti Ranch property via a pipeline.7 Accordingly, the proposed Righetti Well #3 would increase 
groundwater extractions from the Basin. 

VI. ANALYSIS OF THE REQUESTED WAIVER UNDER THE HARDSHIP EXEMPTION 

Legal counsel has analyzed the Request and all supporting materials for any showing of “good cause” 
supporting application of the Hardship Exemption. The Applicant has not submitted any evidence or 
stated any facts showing that denial of the Request would deprive Mr. Righetti of “substantially all 
reasonable economic use of its property under the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution or Article 
I, Section 19 of the California Constitution.” Nor has the Applicant submitted any facts or evidence 
showing that denying the Request would otherwise violate state or federal law. 

Reading the Request in the most generous light, it appears to seek a waiver of the Well Verification 
Policy on the grounds that the existing supply for the cattle operation is unreliable and expensive and 
could become unavailable in the future. For example, Mr. Hoffman’s letter report supporting the 
Request states that the existing water supply to the cattle operation is provided through an 
“antiquated pipeline system that may not be reliable in the future.”8 

After preliminary review of the Request, SABGSA staff offered the Applicant’s representative the 
opportunity to submit additional materials specifically supporting the requested waiver under the 
Hardship Exemption. The only additional supporting documentation that SABGSA received was a one-
page letter dated December 11, 2023, summarizing the information in the prior materials. In relevant 

 

3 Oct. 26, 2023 Rick Hoffman Cover Letter Report (“Letter Report”), pp. 2-3; Dec. 11, 2023 Letter from Paul Righetti 
(“Righetti Letter) (noting the 30-50 gpm capacity range). 
4 Letter Report, pp. 2-3; Righetti Letter. 
5 Letter Report, p. 3. 
6 Letter Report, p. 1. 
7 Letter Report, p. 1. 
8 Letter Report, p. 3. 



  

4 

part, that letter stated, “Currently our livestock water is purchased from an adjacent oil field, which 
has become problematic. The cost of the water has become very expensive yet the system is not 
reliable. The pipelines are very old and are several miles long from the source to our locations. These 
old lines make the system routinely unreliable, which is a hardship for our livestock.”9 

Although the applicant’s desire for a new well is understandable, the evidence and facts submitted do 
not meet the legal standard for application of the Hardship Exemption. For example, although the 
Request states that the current supply to the cattle operation is unreliable, there is no documentation 
that the pipeline will fail in the imminent future. As to the desire for a back-up supply for the 
residential units, there is no documentation as to the insufficiency of the existing residential supply 
(i.e., Righetti Well #2) or that continued residential use by the existing residential units will be 
jeopardized in the absence of a back-up supply. Even in the event that the unavailability of a 
substitute water supply were to force the cattle operation to cease, no documentation has been 
provided that the closure of the cattle operation would deprive Mr. Righetti of “substantially all 
reasonable economic use of [his] property.” Finally, the only evidence relevant to the Hardship 
Exemption were statements made by Mr. Hoffman in his technical report, and the December 11, 2023 
letter from Mr. Righetti.  The applicant did not submit any economic analysis, appraisals, or third-party 
documentation with evidence or facts supporting the SABGSA’s application of the Hardship 
Exemption. 

 

 

 

9 Righetti Letter. 

26985424.3 
 

















 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Righetti GSA Permit Documents Page 1 

October 26, 2023 FILE:GR23Oct:RighettiSAB GSACover 
San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Post Office Box 196 
Solvang, California 93464 
Attn: Ms. Stephanie Bertoux, Executive Director 
Re: GSA Well Verification Application, Supporting Documents & Payment 
 Proposed New Small Production Water Well Project – Righetti Well #3 
 Righetti Ranch Property 
 7476 Graciosa Road, Santa Maria, California 93455 
 APN 101-020-080 
 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••  
Dear Ms. Bertoux: 

Please find enclosed payment to the San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SAB GSA) in 

the amount of $987.50 as an initial deposit for processing of a Well Verification request form for a new small 

(8”) diameter water well to be located on the above described property located south of Orcutt, California 

and owned by the Righetti Family Trust.  I have  included a copy of the Well Verification Request Form, 
Fee and Deposit Agreement, and a copy of the conditionally approved Santa Barbara County, 
Environmental Health Care Services, Water Well Drilling Permit Application (SBC EHS EH-LUA-23-
000205) dated September 12, 2023 for your review.  There is a copy of my Well Interference and Ground 
Subsidence Analysis Report within the SBC EHS Well Permit Application package.   

In summary, domestic use water for the Righetti Ranch property is provided from the Righetti Well #2 that 

was drilled under my supervision in 1984.  The Righetti Well #2 is 345’ deep and is pumped at a flow rate 

of ±30 to 40 gpm.  This well is located along the northern edge of the San Antonio Creek Groundwater 

Basin and hence the relatively low well yields.  This well was meant to supplement the water demand for 

the property that had been previously provided from the old Righetti Well #1 also located on the same 
parcel.  The Old Well #1 was later abandoned due to poor production and sanding problems.  The location 

of these two wells and the proposed new well are graphically shown on the attached WELL LOCATION 

MAP included in the Appendix of this summary report.   

No new domestic or agricultural water demand is proposed for the Righetti property at this time.  

The new well is only meant to support the existing multi-generation cattle operations.  Water for the 

cattle operations is currently provided from a well operated by Pacific Coast Energy (Oil) Company.  This 

well is located in the Santa Maria Valley Groundwater Basin and delivered to the Righetti Ranch property 

via a several mile long pipeline.  The cost and reliability of this out of Basin cattle (non-domestic) water 
supply is tenuous and unreliable because of the poor condition of the aging, several mile long pipeline in 

combination with the economic and regulatory viability of the oil industry in the greater Santa Maria area.  

The Righetti family therefore wishes to provide their own, on-site water supply for their existing long term 

cattle operations that is also separate from the domestic supply.  I have therefore recommended drilling a 

new small diameter well near the southern edge of the property that would be used exclusively for their 

cattle operations so as to reduce the risk of cross contamination with the domestic supply.   



 
SAB GSA Well Verification Application; Righetti Ranch Well Project, 7476 Graciosa Rd., Orcutt, CA 
October 26, 2023 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Righetti GSA Permit Documentation Page 2 
 

As outlined within the SBC EHS Application Summary Report, I have estimated that a cattle operation well 

will use a maximum of approximately 22.4 acre feet per year (afy) of water from the proposed new well 
within the San Antonio Creek Groundwater Basin during a typical year.  Mr. Righetti indicates that the 

Righetti Ranch property has an average herd size of 400 cattle that have an average water requirement of 

±40 to 50 gallons per day for 365 days per year (400 x 50 x 365 = 7,300,000 gallons/325,851 gal/acre foot 

= 22.4 afy).  This figure is used to estimate the average annual total groundwater to be pumped from the 

proposed Righetti Well #3.  Well interference impacts upon the only nearby well (the Righetti Well #2 located 

±450’ west-southwest of the proposed Righetti Well #3) and the potential for land subsidence in the area 

are considered negligible caused by pumping from the proposed new well (see September 6, 2023 Hoffman 

Summary Report contained within the SBC EHS Well Permit Application package).  

The proposed Righetti Well #3 is located near the northwest edge of the San Antonio Groundwater Basin. 

Review of data from the nearby SAB GSA Monitoring Well #34P1 shows that this portion of the Basin is 

in relative balance in terms of water level change through long periods of time (see attached MW #34P1).  

In fact, recent (September 12-13, 2023) measurements show that water levels are currently slowly rising in 

a response to this past winter (2022-23) heavy rainfall season.  It is noteworthy that the MW #34P1 

hydrograph does not show the past 2 years of static water level (SWL) data, although it is reported within 

the recent GSA database (see San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin Quarterly Groundwater Level 

Monitoring – Third Quarter 2023 Report, dated September 19, 2023).  As described within the San Antonio 
Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) adopted on December 16, 2021, the SAB GSA has defined 

both “measurable objective” and a “minimum threshold” Sustainable Management Criteria goals.  It is 

important to note that the current SWL for MW #34P1 is currently at an elevation of 387.31’, slightly above 

the measurable objective of 386’ and ±26’ above the minimum threshold of 361’ as defined by the GSA.  

Review of the MW #4P1 hydrograph also shows that current (2023) water levels are at approximately the 

same elevation as reported over 30 years ago (1991) that was near the end of a severe and prolonged 

drought cycle.  Based on my 40+ years of hydrologic experience in this portion of the Basin, this area is 
underlain by broad areas of Careaga Formation sand at the surface that allows for reasonable rates of 

infiltration of surface water and recharge during periods of good rainfall.   

Under Section 4 of Resolution 22-001, the SAB GSA cannot issue a Well Verification document for a new 

well or alteration of an existing well until State of California Executive Order N-7-22 and SB County Urgency 

Ordinance #5158 are lifted.  There is, however, provisions within Resolution 22-001 that allow for Well 

Verification for a Replacement Well (Section 4b) and/or Hardship Exemptions (Section 5).  The Righetti 

Family Ranch therefore requests that the GSA consider that issuance of a Well Verification document for 

the proposed Righetti Well #3 under these two Sections of SAB GSA Resolution #22-001.  The request is 
based on the following summary criteria: 

• The proposed Righetti Well #3 will be no larger than 8” in diameter and will produce at an estimated 
flow rate of 30 to 40 gpm.  A well of this size and production capacity is not adequate for a large 
agricultural operation. 



 
SAB GSA Well Verification Application; Righetti Ranch Well Project, 7476 Graciosa Rd., Orcutt, CA 
October 26, 2023 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Righetti GSA Permit Documentation Page 3 
 

• Water use from the new well will be for an existing multi-generational cattle operation.  The existing 
cattle operation supply is from an out of basin well source, run by an oil industry operator, using a 
lengthy (several mile long) antiquated pipeline system that may not be reliable in the future.   

• No new agricultural or increased water use from this new well is proposed at this time. 

• There is a strong need for a secondary “replacement” and separate backup well water supply on 
property of this size with multiple residential units.  IF the existing Righetti Well #2 were to fail, the entire 
property including residential units would be out of water for a considerable amount of time. 

• This second, “stand alone” cattle operations well will also reduce the risk of cross contamination 
between the cattle operations and the domestic supply if there were only one well on the property.  

I trust this summary report and two graphics included below will aid you in processing our request for a Well 

Verification document for the proposed Righetti Well #3.  If you have any questions regarding this project, 

please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

 
________________________________________ 
Mr. Rick Hoffman 
Certified Engineering Geologist & Hydrogeologist 
State of California RG #3740 EG #1135 HG #448 
enclosure: Check for $975.00 for payment toward the Righetti Well #3  
 

SAB GSA MW WELL 34P1 HYDROGRAPH

  

 
 



 
SAB GSA Well Verification Application; Righetti Ranch Well Project, 7476 Graciosa Rd., Orcutt, CA 
October 26, 2023 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Righetti GSA Permit Documentation Page 4 
 

 
RIGHETTI WELL #3 LOCATION MAP 

 



Righetti Ranch Properties 
7476 Graciosa Road 
Santa Maria CA 93455 
 
 
December 11, 2023 
 
 
Ms. Stephanie Bertoux 
San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Post Office Box 196 
Solvang CA 93464  
 
RE: Righetti Ranch Properties, APN #101-020-080 
 
Dear Ms. Bertoux: 
 
We are seeking a drilling permit for a new well within the San Antonio basin for our family ranch. 
A new well is necessary as a backup for the single domestic well that currently serves our five 
family homes as well as providing water for our existing livestock operation.  
 
Currently our livestock water is purchased from an adjacent oil field, which has become 
problematic. The cost of the water has become very expensive yet the system is not reliable. 
The pipelines are very old and are several miles long from the source to our locations. These 
old lines make the system routinely unreliable, which is a hardship for our livestock. 
 
We aren’t seeking a large well and would be blessed to have 50 gpm but more than likely it will 
be closer to 30 gpm. 
 
I thank you in advance for your consideration of this request. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 
 
 
Paul T. Righetti 
Righetti Ranch Properties 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









EH-LUA-23-000205







 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Summary Letter Page 1 

   
September 6, 2023 FILE:GR23Sept:SBPermitRighetti#3 
Santa Barbara County 
Environmental Health Services 
225 Camino del Remedio 
Santa Barbara, California  93110 
Attn: Mr. Jason Johnston, Environmental Health Specialist 
Re: Water Well Drilling Permit Application package and 
 Well Interference Analysis 
 Proposed Righetti Well #3 Project 
 7476 Graciosa Road 
 Santa Maria, California 93455 
 APN 101-020-080 
 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••  
Dear Mr. Johnston: 

INTRODUCTION 
I am herewith re-submitting my Water Well Drilling Permit Application and a Well Location Map for a 

new water well to be drilled on the Righetti Ranch property located on the east side of Graciosa Road, 

several miles south of Orcutt, California.  The permit application and well location are essentially the same 

as that submitted and approved by your office on November 19, 2021 (WP# 0005056).  The test hole was 

not drilled within the one year time limitation and the original permit has therefore expired.    

The existing Righetti Well #2 was completed to a total depth of 345’ under my design and testing supervision 

in 1984.  This well was drilled to replace the original Righetti Well #1 that was located near the southwest 

corner of the parcel.  The Righetti Well #1 was maintained as a backup well for many years but was later 
abandoned due to lack of use and eventual pump failure.  Based on recent discussions with members of 

the Righetti family, the Righetti Well #2 has been pumped mainly as a domestic and landscape irrigation 

source since its completion (39 years ago) at an approximate maximum flow rate of 30 to 40 gpm.  This 

flow rate figure is consistent with that recommended in my original Well Completion Report prepared for 

Mr. Righetti on August 15, 1984.  The Righetti Well #2 will continue to be used as a domestic and landscape 

irrigation source for the existing six residential structures located on the subject parcel and other adjacent 

parcels owned by the Righetti family.  Exact past water use from the Righetti Well #2 is not known because 
the well is not metered.  I have estimated historic use from the well by applying a water duty factor ±1.5 to 

2.0 acre feet per year (afy) to the six “small ranchette” type structures on the Righetti properties.  This 

implies that the six single family residences (including landscape irrigation) have historically used 

approximately 9 to 12 acre feet per year (afy).   

The proposed new Righetti Well #3 is located approximately 450’ east-northeast of the Righetti Well #2 and 

is expected to have a similar maximum yield of ±30 to 40 gpm.  The new Righetti Well #3 will be used to 

provide a permanent water source for the existing cattle operations on the primary 643.8 acre parcel where 

the well will be drilled (APN 101-020-080) and 3 other adjacent parcels owned by the Righetti family.  Water 
for the multi-generally cattle operation on the greater Righetti Ranch property holdings has been provided 



Water Well Drilling Permit Applications: Righetti Ranch Well #3 Project, Santa Maria, California 
September 6, 2023 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Summary Letter Page 2 

by an offsite well water supply operated by Pacific Coast Energy Company that is being piped into the 

Righetti Ranch from several miles away to the north.  The cost and reliability of this pipeline supply of non-
domestic water is becoming tenuous because of the decline in the oil industry in the greater Santa Maria 

area.  The Righetti family therefore wishes to provide their own, on-site water supply for their long term 

cattle operations that is separate from the domestic supply.  The cattle operation “head count” on the Ranch 

typically varies from year to year depending on grazing conditions, weather, and other economic 

parameters.  The average head count is from 100 to 400 cattle with an applied water duty factor of 40-50 

gallons per day, per head.  This is equivalent to an annual water requirement for the cattle operation of 

upwards of 22.4 afy (50 gpm x 400 head x 365 days per year).  The combined water demand for the Righetti 

Ranch properties is therefore estimated to be approximately 32.4 afy. 

I have advised Mr. Righetti that being reliant on a one well water system for a property of this size with six 

residences and a large scale cattle operation has significant risk associated with well or pump failure.  The 

new Righetti Well #3 will be used primarily for the cattle operations.  The well will also be used as a backup 

domestic water supply for the residential structures in case the older Righetti Well #2 deteriorates or there 

is a pump system failure.  If the 39 year old Righetti Well #2 were to fail, new well construction would take 

at least several months to complete.  A submersible pump failure can take several weeks or more to provide 

a replacement.  Cross contamination between the cattle operations and the domestic supply is also a risk 

in terms of bacteriologic purity within a one well water system.  Construction of a second well on a property 
of this size is therefore strongly recommended.  It is noteworthy that there is no new development or 
increase in water demand for the Righetti Ranch property proposed by the construction of this 
secondary backup water well.   

LOCAL GEOLOGIC CONDITIONS 
This portion of the Righetti Ranch property is located near the northern edge of the San Antonio Creek 

Groundwater Basin.  The proposed new Righetti Well #3 will be drilled into weakly consolidated strata 

identified as the Paso Robles and Careaga Formations.  The well will be approximately 340’ to 360’ deep 

and completed using 8” diameter PVC casing based on my preliminary understanding of the local geologic 

and hydrologic conditions.  It is possible that the well may be slightly (±20’) deeper than 360’, depending 

on the stratigraphic conditions encountered during drilling.  There are no known septic system or other 

setback constraints within 1,000’ of the proposed well site.  We plan on placing a 50’ minimum sanitary seal 

around upper portions of the casing string to meet SB County standards for protection against potential 
contamination sources such as animal waste.   

I have provided an electronic copy of the SB County, Water Well Permit Application for your review and 

tentative approval.  I will mail a paper copy of the SBC Permit Application along with payment to your Santa 

Maria office within in the next few days.  I have also sent a copy of this Permit to Mr. Righetti and the drilling 

contractor (Filipponi & Thompson Drilling of Atascadero, California) so that they can provide you with 

required signatures and insurance information.  I will be also submitting the Well Verification documentation 



Water Well Drilling Permit Applications: Righetti Ranch Well #3 Project, Santa Maria, California 
September 6, 2023 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Summary Letter Page 3 

to the San Antonio Creek Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SACB GSA) for their review.  The Well 

Verification request will be submitted under the rules outlined in section 4b and 4d of the Resolution No. 
22-001 of the SACB GSA (Replacement Well) for the Righetti Well #1 that was previously abandoned.  

I would be pleased to meet with you on the property at your convenience to inspect the well site, if required.  

If you are able to provide preliminary (conditional) approval of the Well Permit Application without a site 

inspection, please let me know.  I also plan on being present for the placement of the required sanitary seal 

during completion of the new well.  I would be pleased to provide you with a written Well Seal Inspection 

Letter and supportive photographs, if you wish.   

WELL INTERFERENCE 
As outlined within the Well Permit Application, an analysis on potential Well Interference Impacts needs to 

be conducted as part of this submittal if there are other wells within 1,000’ of the proposed new well (SB 

County Ordinance 5158, Section 34A-23a-4 & -7.  The existing (on-site) Righetti Well #2 is located ±450’ 

south-southwest of the proposed new Righetti Well #3.  There are no other known wells on the subject 

parcel or within 1,000’ on the neighboring parcel to the south.   

The San Antonio Creek Groundwater Basin (SACG) has been designated a medium priority Basin by the 
State of California.  Well drilling within the Basin in now regulated under rules and conditions imposed by 

the SACB Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA).  The initial concern regarding permitting and 

construction of new wells within the Basin is from direct well interference (excess drawdown) impacts on 

nearby wells during pumping and if there is the potential for ground subsidence due to pumping from the 

Basin.   

I have drilled over 800 wells in the greater Santa Barbara County area over my 40 year career.  Many of 

these wells are located in the Santa Ynez and San Antonio Creek Valley areas.  I have completed and 
tested numerous moderate to deep wells in the western portion of the San Antonio Creek Valley.  I have 

analyzed the theoretical amount of well interference on nearby wells based on use of the widely used non-

equilibrium well equation developed by Theis.  Application of this equation requires several input 

parameters in order to generate a distance-drawdown curve for a particular well site within the local aquifer.  

Well production in this area is variable with typical flow rates in the several tens of gpm (as exhibited on the 

Righetti Ranch property) to over 1,000 gpm in the thicker portions of the Basin toward the south.  Expected 

well yield from the new Righetti Well #3 is estimated to be in the 30 to 40 gpm range because of the relatively 

thin stratigraphic thickness of the Basin in this area.  The total depth of the completed well is estimated to 
be less than 360’.  The top of the water table is estimated to be located at a depth of approximately 160’ 

(±20’) below local ground surface based on review of on-site and nearby well data.  The net saturated 

thickness of the aquifer is therefore estimated to be ±200’.  It is noteworthy that review of long term static 

water level data from the Righetti Well #2 indicates that the local water table has remained relatively steady 

(within ±20’) for nearly 40 years.  Review of a nearby SCGB GSA Monitoring Well (34P1) shows that water 

table conditions in the vicinity of the Righetti Ranch area have actually risen a few feet in recent years.        



Water Well Drilling Permit Applications: Righetti Ranch Well #3 Project, Santa Maria, California 
September 6, 2023 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Summary Letter Page 4 

As outlined above, the domestic and cattle operation historic water use on the Righetti Ranch properties is 

estimated to be a combined demand of approximately 32.4 afy on a typical year.  Because the proposed 
Righetti Well #3 is intended to be used mainly for the existing cattle operations and only used as a standby 

well for the domestic needs of the property, the estimated annual yield from this new well is ±22.4 afy.  I 

have therefore generated the main input parameters used for the well interference evaluation as follows: 

Estimated Operational Flow Rate: ±40 gpm (data from nearby Righetti Well #2) 
Transmissivity: 4,525 gpd/ft. of available aquifer; (from actual test pump data on Righetti Well #2) 
Storativity: 0.01 (unitless figure); from SCGB GSA Report, Page 3-17 for Careaga Formation) 
Pumping Time: 217 minutes per day (0.151 day) (see Note below for how this figure is calculated) 

I used a total annual production figure of 22.4 acre feet from Righetti Well #2 for cattle operations  
22.4 acre feet = 22.4 x 325,851 gallons/ac-ft = ±7,299,062 gallons per year 
12 month water demand season: 7,299,062/12 = ±608,255 gallons per month (average) 
Daily average water use estimate: 608,255 gal/30.4 days/month = ±20,000 gal/day (average) 
Minutes/hours per day of use: 20,000 gpd/40 gpm = ±500 min/day, equivalent to ±0.35 days of operation 

(see attached excel spread sheet calculations) 
 
I used the above listed input parameters to generate distance-drawdown relationship information following 
standard Theis equation calculations.  I have summarized these calculations on TABLE 1 and GRAPH 1 

to visually show the how the cone of depression expands outward away from the proposed Righetti Well 

#3 during normal pumping cycles.  The nearest existing well (Righetti Well #2), is located ±450’ to the west-

southwest from the proposed Righetti Well #3.  Both wells are located on the same property (APN 101-

020-080) and controlled and operated by the Righetti family. 

In summary, there will be less than 2” of direct well interference upon a theoretical well located at a distance 

of 1,000’ while pumping at a flow rate of 40 gpm for 500 minutes (typical daily water use).  This interference 
calculation is based on a “practical operational pumping scenario” (daily water demand using a 40 gpm 

pump) for a well that supplies water to a cattle operation storage and pipeline system.  The nearest well to 

the proposed new well is the Righetti Well #2 located at a distance of ±450’.  There will be theoretical 

interference of ±1.09’ after 500 minutes of pumping at 40 gpm.  This figure is well below the “not likely to 

interfere” guideline as defined in Sec. 34A-23a-(7)  SB County defines “not likely to interfere” based on 

“average annual yield AND peak pumping capacity” operation of a well over an entire one year period.  This 

is a poorly defined term as you should use either the average annual yield OR the peak pumping capacity, 
but not both.  If you use the peak pumping capacity over an entire one year period, you will far exceed the 

average annual water demand for the project and your calculations are therefore not realistic.  I conducted 

an interference using continuous operation from the well to produce 22.4 acre feet.  This is equivalent to 

continuous use from the well at a sustained flow rate of 13.8 gpm.  This interference simulation would 

generate nearby well impacts of 2.73’ at 450’ (at the Righetti Well #2) and 2.17’ at a distance of 1,000’.  

These figure are below the 5’ of “not likely to interfere” threshold as defined in Sec 34A-23a-(7).  It is 

important to understand that the nearest well is owned and operated by the same family and would therefore 

allow for good management practices such as alternating pumping cycles if interference impacts were to 
become a long term issue.   



Water Well Drilling Permit Applications: Righetti Ranch Well #3 Project, Santa Maria, California 
September 6, 2023 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Rick Hoffman - Consulting Engineering Geologists & Hydrologists  Summary Letter Page 5 

LAND SUBSIDENCE 
The proposed new well will withdraw groundwater from the underlying Paso Robles and Careaga 

Formations.  The top of the water table in this area is estimated to be located at a depth of approximately 

160’ below local ground surface.  In order to provided data to meet the requirements of SB County 

Ordinance 5158, Sec. 34A-23a-6, I have reviewed data within the San Antonio Creek Valley GSA 2022 

Annual Report (Pg. 48 & Figure 8).   

The San Antonio Creek Valley GSA has documented land subsidence conditions in this part of the area 
using data from the UNAVCO CGPS Station located near Los Alamos.  Total land subsidence in the most 

recent time periods was between -0.1’ to +0.1’, well within the 0.05’ per year threshold as defined within 

the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP).  The GSA concluded that this is a relatively broad based and 

insignificant amount of subsidence and is not a major concern for the Basin in terms of loss of storage or 

other impacts.  

CLOSING 
I conclude that modest of pumping from the proposed Righetti Well #3 (22.4 afy) will not exceed the well 

interference (drawdown) threshold (5’ or less after one year) on adjacent wells in the area as defined by 

SB County Ordinance No. 5158 Sec. 341-23a-(7).  The proposed Righetti Well #3 represents a modest 

increase in annual water use from the San Antonio Creek Groundwater Basin that historically was provided 

from an off-site piped in groundwater source.  The water is to be used for existing cattle operations on the 

large historic ranch property. 

Please give me a call or email to confirm receipt of the Water Well Permit Applications, payment, when you 
would like to inspect the well site, and/or your approval of the Permit via remote inspection.  If you have 

any questions regarding this Well Permit Application, please feel free to contact me.  I look forward to seeing 

you soon. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
________________________________________ 
Mr. Rick Hoffman 
Certified Engineering Geologist & Hydrogeologist 
State of California 
RG #3740  EG #1135  HG #448 
 
Enclosures:  Well Interference; TABLE 1 & GRAPH 1 
 
cc:  Mr. Paul Righetti, Property Owner 
 

 
 









EH-LUA-23-000205

















GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 800 Quintana Road, Suite 2C, Morro Bay, CA 93442 www.gsiws.com 

 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin Quarterly Groundwater Level 
Monitoring – Fourth Quarter 2023 
To: Ms. Stephanie Bertoux, Executive Director, San Antonio Basin Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency 

From: Michael McAlpin, GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 
Sydney Robertson, GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 
David O’Rourke, GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 

Attachments: Tables: 
Table 1. Fourth Quarter 2023 Groundwater Level Measurements – Depth to Water 
Table 2. Fourth Quarter 2023 Groundwater Level Measurements – Groundwater 
Elevation 

Figure: 
Figure 1. Wells Included in the San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin 
Groundwater Monitoring Network 

Date: December 19, 2023 

Introduction 
On behalf of the San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SABGSA), GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 
(GSI) completed the fourth quarter 2023 (4Q2023) San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin (Basin) 
groundwater level monitoring event (monitoring event) on December 12th and 13th, 2023. Prior to each 
quarterly monitoring event, GSI contacts well owners/property managers to coordinate access to the wells and 
request that wells be shut off for at least 8 hours before the monitoring event so that a static measurement 
can be obtained. Well owners/property managers were notified on November 28, 2023.  

GSI was able to successfully measure depth to water in all but one well with secured access agreements 
during the December 12th and 13th, 2023 monitoring event. The attached tables provide the status of current 
well access agreements, and the attached figure shows the well locations. The following paragraphs and 
attached tables summarize the results of the 4Q2023 monitoring event. 

4Q2023 Water Level Monitoring Event Summary 
The attached tables summarize the results of the Basin 4Q2023 monitoring event for the wells in the Basin 
Groundwater Level Monitoring Network (Monitoring Network). The tables include the status of current well 
access agreements, depth to water measurements, and calculated groundwater elevations for all wells that 
were able to be accessed during the monitoring event. Wells identified as Representative Monitoring Sites 
(RMS) in the Basin’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) are identified in Table 2 and denoted with the 
respective RMS’s sustainable management criteria (i.e., minimum threshold and measurable objective). The 
following is a summary of observations from the 4Q2023 monitoring event: 

http://www.gsiws.com/


San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin Quarterly Groundwater Level Monitoring – Fourth Quarter 2023 

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.  2 

 The only wells with an active well access agreement that did not have a groundwater level measurement 
collected during the 4Q2023 monitoring event were 2M1 and White Hawk 4.

 No water level measurement was collected from well 2M1 due to the risk of the sounder becoming 
stuck in the well. Groundwater level monitoring at well 2M1 is planned to resume pending the 
installation of a sounding tube.

 The SABGSA received a Well Verification Request for a proposed replacement water well in July 2023. 
The SABGSA verified the proposed well was consistent with the SABGSA’s Well Verification Policy. The 
well to be replaced was determined to be White Hawk 4. During the 4Q2023 monitoring event, White 
Hawk 4 was observed being destroyed as required by the Well Verification Policy, and therefore no 
water level measurement was able to be collected.

 The continuous data recording pressure transducer (transducer) that is located in well 16C4 did not have 
data downloaded during the 4Q2023 monitoring event due to a malfunctioning cable. 16C4 water level 
data collected by the transducer since the 3Q2023 event will be downloaded during the 1Q2024 event.

 The water level reading device could not be retrieved from well 2R1 after the recording of a water level 
measurement. The device became caught during retrieval. The well owner/property manager has been 
notified and a coordinated effort to retrieve the device has been scheduled .

 The 13C1 wellhead had been removed prior to the 3Q and 4Q2023 monitoring events. Consequently, 
depth to water was measured from a different reference point elevation (RPE; 777.45 feet NAVD88) than 
previously reported.

 Well 4 is a new irrigation well that was added to the SABGSA monitoring network in 4Q2023. The well is 
located north of U.S. Highway 101 in the central uplands of the Basin. Well 4 was proposed as a 
replacement well for Mesa Vineyard in the Basin Monitoring Network. Mesa Vineyard is not equipped with 
a sounding tube, increasing the likelihood of a water level reading device becoming caught in the well. 
Mesa Vineyard and Well 4 are completed to similar depths and are constructed with multiple screened 
intervals. Water levels from the two wells will continue to be evaluated to determine if water levels in Well 
4 are representative of water levels in Mesa Vineyard. Mesa Vineyard has a period of record of reported 
water levels from November 2019 to present.

 The air pressure measured at Stephen’s Well during the 3Q and 4Q2023 events has been below historical 
levels. The 3Q and 4Q2023 calculated water levels are suspected to be pumping water levels. No receipt 
confirmation was received from the well owner/property manager in response to the 3Q and 4Q2023 
monitoring event notifications. 

Recommendations 
 Consider the installation of a sounding tube in well 2M1.

 Perform well maintenance on wells 2N1 and Mesa Vineyard to clear rusty material. Well 2N1 and Mesa
Vineyard have historically contained rusty material. Consequently, the sounder becomes coated when
lowered into the well, occasionally blocking the sensor and preventing an accurate water level
measurement.

 Continue public outreach to Basin stakeholders to discuss participation in the Basin’s Monitoring Network.

 Consider the purchase and installation of additional transducers.

 Perform an RPE Survey for the wells included in the Basin Monitoring Network in accordance with the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) well elevation accuracy requirements.

 Perform well video surveys of wells included in the Basin Monitoring Network with outstanding well
construction information (total depth and screened intervals).



San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin Quarterly Groundwater Level Monitoring – Fourth Quarter 2023 

GSI Water Solutions, Inc.  3 

 Purchase and replace transducer cable in well 16C4. This work and associated cost is included in the 
approved 2024 Quarterly Monitoring and Reporting scope of work and budget. 

 Secure access agreement to the White Hawk 4 replacement well. 

 Communicate with Stephen’s Well owner/property manager and confirm contact information for 
monitoring even notification emails. 



Table 1. Fourth Quarter 2023 Groundwater Level Measurements – Depth to Water

State Well Number Site Name Well Type

Water Level 
Measurement 
Frequency/Type Area

Total
Depth

(feet bgs)
Aquifer of
Completion

DTW on 
6/22/2021

and
6/23/2021

DTW on 
9/14/2021

and
9/15/2021

DTW on 
12/8/2021

and
12/9/2021

DTW on 
3/10/2022

and
3/11/2022

DTW on 
6/21/2022

and
6/22/2022

DTW on 
9/15/2022

and
9/16/2022

DTW on 
12/14/2022

and
12/15/2022

DTW on 
3/15/23 
3/16/23 
and 

3/23/23

DTW on 
6/20/2023 
6/21/2023 

and 
6/28/2023

DTW on 
9/12/23    
and    

9/13/23

DTW on 
12/12/23 

and 
12/13/23 Notes on 12/12/23 amd 12/13/23

009N034W34N002S SAHC Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 90 Careaga Sand 73.40 73.55 73.68 73.79 73.93 74.07 74.20 74.43 74.34 74.06 73.86
008N034W21A002S SASA Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 65 Careaga Sand 44.75 45.37 45.69 45.85 46.19 46.98 47.33 46.37 44.82 45.39 46.25
008N034W14L002S SAGR Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 90 Paso Robles Formation 62.06 63.68 63.25 62.89 64.50 66.88 65.72 64.18 62.18 62.31 61.81
008N034W23H001S SAHG Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 75 Paso Robles Formation 43.41 42.85 42.72 43.12 41.42 41.71 40.80 27.74 27.99 30.60 33.22
008N033W22G001S SALS Monitoring Continuous/Transducer Central San Antonio Basin 70 Paso Robles Formation 39.04 38.73 39.73 39.50 39.44 39.34 39.69 31.15 29.29 28.64 29.83
008N032W29L004S SALA Monitoring Continuous/Transducer Central San Antonio Basin 90 Paso Robles Formation 47.54 48.13 48.79 48.95 49.25 49.85 50.46 27.96 26.79 32.32 36.12
008N033W19K002S SACR 1 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 690 Careaga Sand 47.81 49.61 46.27 46.25 51.05 54.90 47.50 ‐‐ 47.90 53.74 48.68
008N033W19K003S SACR 2 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 540 Paso Robles Formation 81.41 76.58 75.51 78.76 81.30 83.33 72.58 ‐‐ 77.38 79.39 73.10
008N033W19K004S SACR 3 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 350 Paso Robles Formation 119.19 113.90 99.00 102.25 119.95 122.83 99.33 ‐‐ 110.41 117.35 99.95
008N033W19K005S SACR 4 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 220 Paso Robles Formation 96.07 95.93 94.72 94.07 95.70 97.73 96.15 ‐‐ 90.53 91.87 92.38
008N033W19K006S SACR 5 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 110 Paso Robles Formation 99.75 100.49 100.30 99.68 99.98 100.47 100.87 95.86 91.91 94.34 95.62
008N032W19M001S SACC 1 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer Central San Antonio Basin 980 Paso Robles Formation 227.45 237.35 229.72 235.35 236.20 241.70 220.97 214.99 224.04 232.96 222.72
008N032W19M002S SACC 2 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 720 Paso Robles Formation 217.18 219.00 215.05 217.05 217.45 222.83 215.17 210.04 212.87 219.52 214.50
008N032W19M003S SACC 3 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 530 Paso Robles Formation 220.53 224.73 220.42 219.40 220.10 223.35 213.49 208.65 213.21 219.74 213.49
008N032W19M004S SACC 4 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 325 Paso Robles Formation 171.01 173.62 172.79 173.70 175.70 177.90 175.98 172.58 174.52 177.45 176.87
008N032W19M005S SACC 5 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 120 Paso Robles Formation 107.25 107.20 107.13 107.10 107.05 107.30 107.20 107.01 106.94 106.50 105.82
008N034W02M001S 2M1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 750 Paso Robles Formation 152.50 154.13 152.60 154.55 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ Temporarily discontinued due to risk of stuck sounder

‐‐ White Hawk 1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 560 Careaga Sand 123.12 124.03 124.03 112.73 125.50 126.50 125.10 123.96 123.96 124.58 123.29

008N32W17N001S White Hawk 4 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 820 Careaga Sand 98.80 99.24 98.85 97.90 100.55 101.20 98.50 98.00 98.77 98.97 ‐‐

Proposed Original Well in July 2023 Well Verification Request. 
Well observed being destroyed as required by the SABGSA 

Well Verification Policy.
‐‐ Mesa Vineyard Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Careaga Sand 216.50 217.10 218.08 218.80 219.50 220.50 216.10 215.85 ‐‐ 219.17 216.91 Rusty material in well

008N033W02N001S 2N1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 980 Careaga Sand 226.50 ‐‐ 224.65 227.10 226.20 228.00 225.50 ‐‐ 224.23 228.06 224.33 Rusty material in well
008N033W02R001S 2R1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 370 Careaga Sand 192.82 185.22 119.42 118.75 173.55 120.50 120.45 120.30 120.61 120.94 121.02

‐‐ Well 4 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 1,000 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 122.50
008N033W10 4‐Deer Field Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 490 Careaga Sand 25.15 27.82 27.67 27.09 65.90 68.00 28.61 25.59 27.53 30.39 29.48
008N033W03L001S 4‐Deer Highway Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 349 Careaga Sand 97.71 94.80 95.05 96.10 96.59 98.10 96.11 94.82 98.01 98.79 97.63

‐‐ Schaff Well Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 669 Careaga Sand 215.82 216.28 216.65 216.76 217.24 217.90 218.05 218.24 218.29 218.97 219.15
008N034W14L001S 14L1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 593 Careaga Sand 70.93 70.82 68.99 68.12 71.18 73.70 69.95 68.24 70.85 74.84 72.16
009N034W34P001S 34P1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 223 Careaga Sand 68.86 68.60 68.55 72.66 71.85 70.80 70.15 66.50 ‐‐ 67.65 66.19
008N034W17Q001S 17Q1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 48 Careaga Sand 13.85 ‐‐ 14.78 14.80 15.40 ‐‐ ‐‐ 13.31 13.72 14.80 15.21
008N034W21A001S 21A1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 271 Careaga Sand 35.64 36.22 36.79 36.93 37.80 38.75 38.83 37.70 37.40 38.62 38.88
008N034W17K002S 17K2 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 60 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 6.98 6.98 7.13 7.30 7.40 7.38 7.30 7.31 7.31
008N034W17E001S 17E1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 89 Careaga Sand 21.40 21.76 22.03 22.20 22.28 22.35 22.38 19.72 19.44 20.26 20.67
008N034W16C002S 16C2 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 169 Careaga Sand 75.36 76.15 86.75 87.76 74.72 94.03 87.72 92.73 82.20 91.43 84.44
008N034W16C004S 16C4 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 560 Careaga Sand 67.24 67.80 73.94 74.66 87.21 79.63 75.30 78.30 74.79 78.03 73.70
008N034W17H001S 17H1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 61 Careaga Sand 15.68 16.54 17.20 16.97 17.81 18.81 18.90 13.24 13.94 15.65 16.43
008N034W16F001S 16F1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 58 Careaga Sand 30.33 30.92 38.50 40.34 43.83 46.30 45.47 45.09 38.45 43.17 41.39
008N034W16G003S 16G3 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 56 Careaga Sand 48.84 49.00 49.31 49.86 50.52 51.17 51.85 52.36 52.47 52.40 52.65
008N033W13C001S 13C1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 1,070 Careaga Sand 195.00 ‐‐ 188.10 188.90 190.20 188.00 187.30 ‐‐ 188.40 186.08 185.94 Wellhead removed, new RPE

008N033W07 Stephen's Well Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 590 Careaga Sand ‐‐ 332.95 338.73 341.04 339.88 343.35 339.88 ‐‐ 342.19 381.46 379.15
Measured with airline, suspected pumping during 

measurement
008N033W22K003S 22K3 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 250 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 79.65 82.59 79.45  
008N033W13Q001S 13Q1 Irrigation ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin 295 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  
008N032W30D001S 30D1 Monitoring ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin 895 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  
008N032W25D001S 25D1 Irrigation ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin 700 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  
008N031W22J001S 22J1 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  
008N031W22N001S 22N1 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin 175 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  
008N031W22M001S 22M1 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  
008N034W24E001S 24 E1 Monitoring ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin 580 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  
008N033W20Q002S 20Q2 Irrigation ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐  

‐‐ VERNAS 1 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
‐‐ VERNAS 2 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
‐‐ HWY 101 CATTLE Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐

008N032W27P003S GUZMAN 2 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N032W30E005S 30E5 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin 1,001 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N033W25B005S 25B5 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin 100 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N032W28P004S 28P4 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin 524 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N034W36R Careaga Lease Unknown ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin 284 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
009N034W27L001S 27L1 Unknown ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin 405 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ Well Destroyed March 2021

Notes: Green highlighted cells indicate well access agreement has been acquired
Yellow highlighted cells indicate well access agreement is pending
Red highlighted cells indicate well access denied
Gray highlighted cells indicate well access not applicable
bgs = below ground surface
DTW = Depth to Water (feet below reference point elevation)
‐‐ = unknown or not applicable



Table 2. Fourth Quarter 2023 Groundwater Level Measurements – Groundwater Elevation

State Well Number Site Name Well Type

Water Level 
Measurement 
Frequency/Type Area

Total
Depth

(feet NAVD88)
Aquifer of
Completion

MT
Elevation

(feet NAVD88)

MO 
Elevation

(feet NAVD88)

GWE on 
6/22/2021

and
6/23/2021

GWE on 
9/14/2021

and
9/15/2021

GWE on 
12/8/2021

and
12/9/2021

GWE on 
3/10/2022

and
3/11/2022

GWE on 
6/21/2022

and
6/22/2022

GWE on 
9/15/2022

and
9/16/2022

GWE on 
12/14/2022 

and 
12/15/2022

GWE on 
3/15/23 
3/16/23 
and 

3/23/23

GWE on 
6/20/2023 
6/21/2023 

and 
6/28/2023

GWE on 
9/12/23   
and     

9/13/23

GWE on 
12/12/23 

and 
12/13/23 Notes on 12/12/23 and 12/13/23

009N034W34N002S SAHC Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 363 Careaga Sand 358 ‐‐ 381.94 381.79 381.66 381.55 381.41 381.27 381.14 380.91 381.00 381.28 381.48
008N034W21A002S SASA Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 245 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 267.06 266.44 266.12 265.96 265.62 264.83 264.48 265.44 266.99 266.42 265.56
008N034W14L002S SAGR Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 240 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 267.49 265.87 266.30 266.66 265.05 262.67 263.83 265.37 267.37 267.24 267.74
008N034W23H001S SAHG Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 246 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 280.20 280.76 280.89 280.49 282.19 281.90 282.81 295.87 295.62 293.01 290.39
008N033W22G001S SALS Monitoring Continuous/Transducer Central San Antonio Basin 390 Paso Robles Formation 397 ‐‐ 420.22 420.53 419.53 419.76 419.82 419.92 419.57 428.11 429.97 430.62 429.43
008N032W29L004S SALA Monitoring Continuous/Transducer Central San Antonio Basin 506 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 548.83 548.24 547.58 547.42 547.12 546.52 545.91 568.41 569.58 564.05 560.25
008N033W19K002S SACR 1 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin ‐327 Careaga Sand 291 ‐‐ 314.01 312.21 315.55 315.57 310.77 306.92 314.32 ‐‐ 313.92 308.08 313.14
008N033W19K003S SACR 2 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin ‐177 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ 280.41 285.24 286.31 283.06 280.52 278.49 289.24 ‐‐ 284.44 282.43 288.72
008N033W19K004S SACR 3 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 13 Paso Robles Formation 233 ‐‐ 242.62 247.91 262.81 259.56 241.86 238.98 262.48 ‐‐ 251.40 244.46 261.86
008N033W19K005S SACR 4 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 143 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 265.75 265.89 267.10 267.75 266.12 264.09 265.67 ‐‐ 271.29 269.95 269.44
008N033W19K006S SACR 5 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 252 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 265.49 264.75 264.94 265.56 265.26 264.77 264.37 269.38 273.33 270.90 269.62
008N032W19M001S SACC 1 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer Central San Antonio Basin ‐394 Paso Robles Formation 348 ‐‐ 357.59 347.69 355.32 349.69 348.84 343.34 364.07 370.05 361.00 352.08 362.32
008N032W19M002S SACC 2 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin ‐134 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 367.83 366.01 369.96 367.96 367.56 362.18 369.84 374.97 372.14 365.49 370.51
008N032W19M003S SACC 3 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 56 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 364.52 360.32 364.63 365.65 364.95 361.70 371.56 376.40 371.84 365.31 371.56
008N032W19M004S SACC 4 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 261 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 413.98 411.37 412.20 411.29 409.29 407.09 409.01 412.41 410.47 407.54 408.12
008N032W19M005S SACC 5 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 466 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ 478.83 478.88 478.95 478.98 479.03 478.78 478.88 479.07 479.14 479.58 480.26
008N034W02M001S 2M1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin ‐331 Paso Robles Formation 244 286 267.51 265.88 267.41 265.46 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ Temporarily discontinued due to risk of stuck sounder

‐‐ White Hawk 1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 241 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 679.24 678.33 678.33 689.63 676.86 675.86 677.26 678.40 678.40 677.78 679.07

008N32W17N001S White Hawk 4 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin ‐39 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 682.87 682.43 682.82 683.77 681.12 680.47 683.17 683.67 682.90 682.70 ‐‐

Proposed Original Well in July 2023 Well Verification 
Request. Well observed being destroyed as required by the 

SABGSA Well Verification Policy.
‐‐ Mesa Vineyard Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 590.29 589.69 588.71 587.99 587.29 586.29 590.69 590.94 ‐‐ 587.62 589.88 Rusty material in well

008N033W02N001S 2N1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin ‐153 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 600.75 ‐‐ 602.60 600.15 601.05 599.25 601.75 ‐‐ 603.02 599.19 602.92 Rusty material in well
008N033W02R001S 2R1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 406 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 584.58 592.18 657.98 658.65 603.85 656.90 656.95 657.10 656.79 656.46 656.38

‐‐ Well 4 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 1,000 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 596.57
008N033W10 4‐Deer Field Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 149 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 614.21 611.54 611.69 612.27 573.46 571.36 610.75 613.77 611.83 608.97 609.88
008N033W03L001S 4‐Deer Highway Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 340 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 591.97 594.88 594.63 593.58 593.09 591.58 593.57 594.86 591.67 590.89 592.05

‐‐ Schaff Well Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin ‐71 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 383.68 383.22 382.85 382.74 382.26 381.60 381.45 381.26 381.21 380.53 380.35
008N034W14L001S 14L1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin ‐264 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 259.49 259.60 261.43 262.30 259.24 256.72 260.47 262.18 259.57 255.58 258.26
009N034W34P001S 34P1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 230 Careaga Sand 361 386 386.10 386.36 386.41 382.30 383.11 384.16 384.81 388.46 ‐‐ 387.31 388.77
008N034W17Q001S 17Q1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 222 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 261.15 ‐‐ 260.22 260.20 259.60 ‐‐ ‐‐ 261.69 261.28 260.20 259.79
008N034W21A001S 21A1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 30 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 268.13 267.55 266.98 266.84 265.97 265.02 264.94 266.07 266.37 265.15 264.89
008N034W17K002S 17K2 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 200 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 257.32 257.32 257.17 257.00 256.90 256.92 257.00 256.99 256.99
008N034W17E001S 17E1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 154 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 225.70 225.34 225.07 224.90 224.82 224.75 224.72 227.38 227.66 226.84 226.43
008N034W16C002S 16C2 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin 160 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 254.80 254.01 243.41 242.40 255.44 236.13 242.44 237.43 247.96 238.73 245.72
008N034W16C004S 16C4 Monitoring Continuous/Transducer West San Antonio Basin ‐231 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 262.75 262.19 256.05 255.33 242.78 250.36 254.69 251.69 255.20 251.96 256.29
008N034W17H001S 17H1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 199 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 248.92 248.06 247.40 247.63 246.79 245.79 245.70 251.36 250.66 248.95 248.17
008N034W16F001S 16F1 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 219 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ 250.14 249.55 241.97 240.13 236.64 234.17 235.00 235.38 242.02 237.30 239.08
008N034W16G003S 16G3 Monitoring Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 239 Careaga Sand 226 244 248.64 248.48 248.17 247.62 246.96 246.31 245.63 245.12 245.01 245.08 244.83
008N033W13C001S 13C1 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin ‐293 Careaga Sand 565 597 582.75 ‐‐ 589.65 588.85 587.55 589.75 590.45 ‐‐ 589.35 591.37 591.81 Wellhead removed, new RPE

008N033W07 Stephen's Well Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete West San Antonio Basin 83 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 341.06 335.29 332.98 334.13 330.67 334.13 ‐‐ 331.82 292.55 294.86
Measured with airline, suspected pumping during 

measurement
008N033W22K003S 22K3 Irrigation Quarterly/Discrete Central San Antonio Basin 203 Paso Robles Formation 344 370 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ 373.68 370.74 373.88  
008N033W13Q001S 13Q1 Irrigation ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin 367 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N032W30D001S 30D1 Monitoring ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin ‐355 Paso Robles Formation 345 388 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N032W25D001S 25D1 Irrigation ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin 65 Careaga Sand 634 661 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N031W22J001S 22J1 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N031W22N001S 22N1 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin 1,026 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N031W22M001S 22M1 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N034W24E001S 24 E1 Monitoring ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin ‐230 Careaga Sand 220 257 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N033W20Q002S 20Q2 Irrigation ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin ‐‐ Paso Robles Formation 298 335 ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐

‐‐ VERNAS 1 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
‐‐ VERNAS 2 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
‐‐ HWY 101 CATTLE Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐

008N032W27P003S GUZMAN 2 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N032W30E005S 30E5 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin ‐458 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N033W25B005S 25B5 Unknown ‐‐ Central San Antonio Basin 426 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N032W28P004S 28P4 Unknown ‐‐ East San Antonio Basin 99 Paso Robles Formation ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
008N034W36R Careaga Lease Unknown ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin 344 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐
009N034W27L001S 27L1 Unknown ‐‐ West San Antonio Basin 110 Careaga Sand ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ ‐‐ Well Destroyed March 2021

Notes: Green highlighted cells indicate well access agreement has been acquired
Yellow highlighted cells indicate well access agreement is pending
Red highlighted cells indicate well access denied
Gray highlighted cells indicate well access not applicable

Bold Minimum Threshold (MT) exceeded
Bold Measurable Objective (MO) exceeded

NAVD88 = North American Vertical Datum of 1988
GWE = Groundwater Elevation (feet NAVD88)
‐‐ = unknown or not applicable



LACSD 3

25B5 LACSD 5

30E5

LACSD 3a

S A N T A  B A R B A R A
C O U N T Y

L O S
A L A M O S

S a n A n t o n i o C r e e k

C añad a
D e

S ant a
Ro sa

Cua sl u i C r e e k

C a
n a

d a
de

L a
s

F l
o r

e s

C a r
e a

g a
C a

n y
o n

H a r r i s  C a n y o n  C r e e k

C r
ee

k

Well 4

LACSD 6

2R1

2N1

14L1*
16C2
16C4

16F117E1
17K2

17Q1 21A1

22J122M1

27L1

SASA

Schaff Well

White Hawk 1

4-Deer Field

White Hawk 4

Careaga Lease

4-Deer
Highway

Stephen's Well
17H1

Mesa Vineyard

13Q1

22N1

28P4

SAGR
SAHG

SALA

SACC 5SACR 2
SACR 5

SACC 2
SACC 3
SACC 4

SACR 4

UV1

UV135

UV176

UV246

UV154

UV1

UV246

UV135

UV1

UV1

£¤101

£¤101

SALS

SAHC

SACR 3SACR 1*
SACC 1

34P1

30D1

2M1

25D1

24 E1
22K3

20Q2

16G3
13C1

LACSD 4

S A N T A
M A R I A

L O M P O C

BARKA
SLOUGH

Date: December 18, 2023 
Data Sources: USGS (2020a), ESRI, DWR (2018),
Maxar imagery (2020)

LEGEND
Representative Well

Wells (by screened aquifer)
Paso Robles Formation

Careaga Sand

All Other Features
San Antonio Creek or Tributary

Major Road

San Antonio Creek Valley
Groundwater Basin

Barka Slough

City Boundary

Document Path: Y:\0748_San_Antonio_GSP\Source_Figures\012_Quarterly_GW_Monitoring_Reporting\4Q2023\Figure1_GW_Mon_Network.mxd

FIGURE 1
Wells Included in the

San Antonio Creek Valley
Groundwater Basin

Groundwater Monitoring Network

o

NOTES
*SACR 1 and 14L1 are screened in the
Careaga Sand.

San Antonio Creek Valley Groundwater Basin
Boundary as defined in the California
Department of Water Resources Bulletin 118.

0 5,000 10,000 15,000

Feet

San Antonio Creek Valley 
Groundwater Basin Quarterly

Groundwater Level Monitoring 

Fourth Quarter 2023

C
A

L
I F

O
R

N
I ASAN ANTONIO

CREEK VALLEY


	Financials 12.31.23.pdf
	Financials 12.31.23 NEW
	Balance Sheet NEW
	Vendor Detail

	SACVB_4Q2023_WL_Mon_TM_20231219.pdf
	Introduction
	4Q2023 Water Level Monitoring Event Summary
	Recommendations
	Table 1_Q4 2023 WL Measurements_DTW.pdf
	WL Measurements - DTW


	Item 6b - Counsel Memo re Righetti Well Verification Request.pdf
	I. summary of agenda item
	II. potential actions the board may take
	III. RECOMMENDATION
	IV. background on the well verification policy
	V. summary of the righetti well verification request
	VI. analysis of the requested waiver under the hardship exemption




